
The Mission of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District is to protect public health and our environment, providing effective wastewater 
collection, treatment, and resource recovery. 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

   BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

FEBRUARY 6, 2025 

MATERIALS RELATED TO ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA ARE AVAILABLE FOR 

PUBLIC INSPECTION DURING NORMAL BUSINESS HOURS AT THE DISTRICT 

OFFICE, 101 LUCAS VALLEY ROAD, SUITE 300, SAN RAFAEL, OR ON THE DISTRICT 

WEBSITE  WWW.LGVSD.ORG 

OPEN SESSION: 

1. PUBLIC COMMENT

This portion of the meeting is reserved for people desiring to address the Board on matters not on the

agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District. Presentations are generally

limited to three minutes. All matters requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or

placed on a future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting.

2. CONSENT CALENDAR:

These items are considered routine and will be enacted, approved or adopted by one motion

unless a request for removal for discussion or explanation is received from the staff or the Board.

A. Approve the Board Minutes for January 16 and January 23, 2025

B. Receive and Ratify the Check Warrant List

C. Approve Order of Publications - Ordinances 196 and 197

D. Approve nominating Craig Murray for the LAFCo Special District Seat

Possible expenditure of funds:  Yes, Item B. 

Staff recommendation:  Adopt Consent Calendar – Items A through D. 

3. INFORMATION ITEMS:

STAFF/CONSULTANT REPORTS:

1. General Manager’s Report – verbal

2. Administration Department Report – written

3. Financial Quarterly Report – written

4. Collections/Safety/Maintenance Department Report – written

5. Ordinance Title 1 Chapter 3 Purchasing Update – written

6. Board Policy O-30 Emergencies  – written

4:10 PM 

4:05 PM 

Estimated 
Time 

4:00 PM 

1

http://www.lgvsd.org/


February 6, 2025 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

4. BOARD MEMBER REPORTS:

1. CLARK
a. NBWA Board Committee, Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,

Human Resources Ad Hoc Committee, Energy Ad Hoc Committee,
CASA Workforce Committee, Other Reports

2. LAVROV
a. Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee,

McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

3. MURRAY
a. Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6, Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, CASA Energy Committee,

Development Ad Hoc Committee,  San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee,
Energy Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

4. ROBARDS
a. Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA,  Engineering Ad Hoc Committee,
b. McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc Committee,  Development Ad Hoc Committee,

Human Resources Ad Hoc Committee, GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports

5. YEZMAN
a. Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Engineering Ad Hoc Committee,

Marin Special Districts Association,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet Management
Ad Hoc Committee,  Other Reports

5. BOARD REQUESTS:
A. Board Meeting Attendance Requests – Verbal

B. Board Agenda Item Requests – Verbal

6. VARIOUS INDUSTRY RELATED ARTICLES

7. ADJOURNMENT

 FUTURE BOARD MEETING DATES: FEBRUARY 20 AND MARCH 6, 2025 

5:45 PM 

5:50 PM 

6:00 PM 

5:30 PM 

2



February 6, 2025 

101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300  •  San Rafael, CA  94903  •  415.472.1734  •  Fax 415.499.7715  •  
www.lgvsd.org 

CERTIFICATION:  I, Teresa Lerch, Board Secretary of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, hereby 
declare under penalty of perjury that on or before February 3, 2025 4:00 p.m., I posted the Agenda for the 
Board Meeting of said Board to be held on February 6, 2025 at the District Office, located at 101 Lucas 
Valley Road, Suite 300, San Rafael, CA. 

DATED: January 30, 2025 

_______________________ 
Teresa L. Lerch 
Board Secretary 

 _________________________________________________________________  

The Board of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District meets regularly on the first and third Thursday of  
each month. The District may also schedule additional special meetings for the purpose of completing unfinished 
business and/or study sessions. Regular meetings are held at the District Office, 101 Lucas Valley Road, Suite 300, 
San Rafael, CA.  

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sec. 12132), if you need special assistance 
to participate in this meeting, please contact the Board Secretary at the District at (415) 472-1734 at least 24 hours 
prior to the meeting. Notification prior to the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable disability-
related modifications or accommodations, including auxiliary aids or services, to help ensure accessibility to 
this meeting. 

AGENDA APPROVED: Gary E. Robards,  President Patrick Richardson, Legal Counsel 

3



 

 
 

 

2/6/2025 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons desiring to address the Board on 

matters not on the agenda and within the jurisdiction of the Las Gallinas Valley 

Sanitary District. Presentations are generally limited to three minutes. All matters 

requiring a response will be referred to staff for reply in writing and/or placed on a 

future meeting agenda. Please contact the General Manager before the meeting. 
 

AGENDA ITEM 1 

4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



 

 

 Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Teri Lerch, Board Secretary 
 (415) 526-1510, tlerch@lgvsd.org  
Meeting Date: February 6, 2025 

Re: Call for LAFCo Nominations for the Special District Seat 

Item Type:   Consent X         Action      Information  Other         

Standard Contract:    Yes     No X (See attached) Not Applicable              
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board nominate Director Craig K. Murray (current member of LAFCo) for the LAFCo Special 
District Seat ending in May 2029. 
 
BACKGROUND 
There are two special District representatives (regular seats) plus an alternate on the LAFCo 
board. Regular special district members serve on the Commission and are able to vote on all 
items in front of the Marin LAFCo Commission.  
 
One Regular Seat is up for Nomination. A vote by mail ballot election must be held to select a 
member for the regular seat position, to serve a four-year term ending in May 2029. This seat is 
currently held by Director Craig K. Murray. His term expires in May 2025. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
At the February 4, 2021 Board meeting, the Board unanimously nominated Director Craig K. 
Murray for the LAFCo Special District Seat ending in May 2025. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
None   
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 
A. LAFCo Call for Nominations Memorandum 
B. Nomination Form for LAFCo Special District Seats 
C. LAFCo Special District Representative Nominee Statement of Qualifications 
D. Proposed Election Process for Marin LAFCo Special District Representatives 

Item Number_______2D____ 

GM Review   ________CP___ 

 

24



Page 1 of 1 Page 1 of 2 

An organization to propose and advocate constructive means for the improvement and functioning of Special 
Districts within the County of Marin, State of California, and to assist such Special Districts and their governing 

bodies to provide a more effective and efficient government at the closest level to the citizens of Marin County that 
will result in benefit to the public. 

MEMORANDUM 

DATE:  December 13, 2024 

TO: Independent Special Districts, Presiding Officers 

FROM:  Garrett Toy, President MCSDA 

RE: CALL FOR LAFCO NOMINATIONS 

LAFCo Marin County Election Facts 
There are two special district representatives (regular seats) plus an alternate on the LAFCo Board. 
They serve alternating four-year terms. There are no term limits for these seats. The remainder of 
the LAFCo Board is made up of Marin County and City representatives. LAFCo is a sub-agency of the 
State of California and is responsible for evaluating and recommending potential consolidations of 
local government jurisdictions within the County. 

Regular vs alternate seats: Regular special district members serve on the Commission and are able 
to vote on all items in front of the Marin LAFCo Commission. The alternate special district member 
serves on the Commission and is able to participate in Commission meetings but only is allowed to 
vote on matters when one of the regular special district members is not able to vote on the matter 
due to absence or conflict of interest. 

Special District Election- One Regular Seat up for Nomination 
A vote by mail ballot election must be held to select a member for the regular seat position, to serve a 
four-year term ending in May 2029. There are no term limits for this seat.  This seat is currently held 
by Craig Murray. His term expires in May 2025. 

Nominations  
Attached is a copy of the approved policy and guidelines for the Special District and qualifications 
form to participate in the following election. Please be aware that if your district wishes to 
nominate a person for either position, the attached forms for nominations and for statements of 
candidate qualifications must be completed.  Supportive materials will also be accepted  
Nomination forms are due February 11, 2025, by 5 PM via email or mail at the same email and 
mailing address listed under the “Selection Schedule.” 

Attachment A

25



Page 1 of 1 Page 1 of 2   

 
Selection Schedule 
MCSDA will receive nominations through February 11, 2025, by 5 PM.  
 
Ballots will be distributed by February 18, 2025. The candidate qualifications forms and any 
supportive materials will be distributed with the ballots. 
 
The final date MCSDA will receive ballots is Monday, April 21, 2025, by 3:00 PM.  
 
Send ballots by e-mail to:  
 
gtoy@tamcsd.org  Subject: LAFCo Ballot 
 
or mail to: 
 
MCSDA- LAFCo Ballot 
c/o Tamalpais Community Services District (TCSD) 
305 Bell Lane 
Mill Valley, CA 94941 
 
Ballot Counting shall occur on Monday, April 21, 2025 at 3:00pm.  Any candidate or general member 
of the public is welcome to witness the process at the TCSD office at 305 Bell Lane. 
 
The newly selected or re-appointed candidate will be seated in time for the June 12, 2025 regular 
commission meeting. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Nomination Form 

2. Member Statement of Qualifications  

3. Policy and Guidelines for Special District Member Elections 

 

 
 
 
  

26

mailto:gtoy@tamcsd.org


An organization to propose and advocate constructive means for the improvement and functioning of Special 
Districts within the County of Marin, State of California, and to assist such Special Districts and their governing bodies 

to provide a more effective and efficient government at the closest level to the citizens of Marin County that will 
result in benefit to the public. 

NOMINATION FORM FOR LAFCo SPECIAL DISTRICT SEATS 

Due Tuesday, February 11, 2024, 5:00PM by email to gtoy@tamcsd.org or mail to: General Manager, LAFCo 
Nomination, TCSD, 305 Bell Lane, Mill Valley, CA 94941   

District Name: Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

Our board voted to nominate the following current member of its own or another independent 

special district: 

Name of Nominee: Craig K. Murray 

District of Nominee: Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

Applying for (check one): 

 X  Regular Member 

 Alternate Member 

 Both Seats (Regular and Alternate) 

(NOTE: if your Board approved the nomination by resolution you may attach that in-lieu of filling out the 
bottom portion of this form.) 

Ayes: 

Noes: 

Absent: 

Abstain: 

Attest: 

General Manager or Secretary Board President 

Attachment B

27

mailto:gtoy@tamcsd.org


An organization to propose and advocate constructive means for the improvement and functioning of Special Districts 
within the County of Marin, State of California, and to assist such Special Districts and their governing bodies to 

provide a more effective and efficient government at the closest level to the citizens of Marin County that will result in 
benefit to the public. 

LAFCo SPECIAL DISTRICT REPRESENTATIVE NOMINEE STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 

Due Tuesday, February 11, 2024, 5:00PM by email to gtoy@tamcsd.org or mail to: General Manager, LAFCo 
Nomination, TCSD, 305 Bell Lane, Mill Valley, CA 94941   

Name: Craig K. Murray 

District: Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District 

Applying for (check one): 

 X  Regular Member 

 Alternate Member 

 Both Seats (Regular and Alternate) 

Telephone Number (Home/Cell):    (415) 747-4500  Work:    (510) 307-8188 

Email:   cmurray@lgvsd.org 

Home Address:   260 Merrydale Rd #15, San Rafael, CA  94903 

Work Address:   450 Civic Center Plaza, Richmond, CA  94804 

Present Occupation:   Development Project Manager (City Manager Office) 

(Note: 3 page application) 

Attachment C

28

mailto:gtoy@tamcsd.org


 

Summary of Qualifications (Please do not state refer to resume): 

 
 

     Incumbent, Served as Marin County LAFCo Vice-Chair 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Reason for Applying: 

      Continue to serve Marin LAFCo; To better policies and service levels to Marin County 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29



Please list organizations in which you are an officer or employee: 

        Past Marin County LAFCo Vice-Chair;  Founding Member of Marin County Special Districts Association, 

         International Right of Way Association (IRWA), SF Bay/Santa Rosa Chapter 2, President (2024) 

         IRWA San Francisco Chapter Professional of the Year (2024) 

Additional information may be attached. 

30



July 7, 2020 Page 1 of 2 July 7, 2020 Page 1 of 2 

Proposed Election Process for Marin LAFCo Special District Representatives 

Background: 

California Government Code §56332 (attached) establishes a process to facilitate the participation 

of all the independent special districts with regards to the selection of two regular and one alternate 

special district representatives to Marin LAFCo. This process calls for the County LAFCo to preside over 

elections where a quorum of the Marin County Independent Special District Selection Committee 

(CISDSC) cannot be reached. In Marin County the CISDSC has historically had issues getting quorum so 

has had to rely on Marin LAFCo to run the process. With the formation of Marin County Special 

Districts Association (MCSDA) an opportunity has presented itself for the CISDSC to work with the 

MCSDA to help achieve a quorum of the CISDSC and create rules for the election of LAFCo seats that 

best fit the needs of the current members of the CISDSC. Should at least 16 of the 30 CISDSC 

Boards/Commissions approve the below changes to the process then this process will become the process 

the CISDSC follows. 

Proposed Election Process: 

Marin’s CISDSC shall consist of the presiding officer of the legislative body for each agency who 

is a paying member of Marin LAFCo or an alternate board member as appointed by each body. Upon 

notification by the Marin LAFCo Executive Officer of a term expiration or vacancy, the CISDSC will 

convene per the timetable minimally required by §56332 to fill the vacancy/vacancies as described below: 

1. When notified, the MCSDA shall initiate the ballot process for special district members prior to the

pending expiration of the term of a special district member or immediately upon notification that the

eligibility of a special district member will be ending prior to the expiration of his or her term.

2. The MCSDA shall initiate the ballot process by emailing each member agency of the CISDSC a Call

for Nominations including a schedule of the selection process and a copy of this policy. Nominations

must be submitted in writing via email by special district governing boards within 60 days of the date of

the Call for Nominations. The submittal of a nomination must include a statement of the candidate's

qualifications.

3. Should the number of candidates nominated be equal to the number of seats available the nominated

candidate(s) shall be deemed the winner(s); no ballots created and the membership of CISDSC informed

of the winning candidate appointment to LAFCo.

4. Within five working days after the close of the nomination period, the MCSDA shall email a ballot to

each independent special district. The distribution of ballots shall include a statement of qualifications for

each candidate as provided by the candidate(s).

5. The MCSDA Local Government Committee shall appoint a person to be the election officer for any

election where more candidates are running then there are seats available. The person appointed must

either be a board member/staff of a CISDSC jurisdiction or staff for Marin LAFCo. The person appointed

cannot be a candidate for a seat which is up for election or come from a jurisdiction that has a candidate

on the ballot. The election officer sole responsibility is to conduct the counting of ballots and determining

the winner of the election.

6. The MCSDA shall call for a meeting of the CISDSC to be held not less than 60 days after the

distribution of ballots. Selection Committee meetings can be held concurrent with MCSDA meetings (i.e.

at the same location and either immediately before or after the MCSDA meeting.) Per §56332(a),

members representing a majority of the eligible districts shall constitute a quorum. For districts not able

Attachment D

31



July 7, 2020 Page 1 of 2 July 7, 2020 Page 1 of 2   

to send a representative to the meeting the paper ballot shall count as that jurisdiction’s attendance and 

count towards quorum. 

7. At the CISDSC meeting, in-person ballots will be collected and tallied with all ballots sent in prior to 

the counting of ballots. A majority of independent special districts must cast ballots to select a special 

district member. 

 

8. Ballots cast by each special district must bear the signature of the district's presiding officer or by 

another board/commission member as approved by that groups governing body. Ballots submitted by a 

vote of the district’s board/commission shall have precedent over a ballot submitted by a presiding 

officer. 

 

9. All ballots and other records of each selection process shall be retained in the Marin LAFCo office for 

at least four years and shall be immediately available for public inspection. 

10. When more than two candidates are nominated, the ballot form shall provide for selection by majority 

of votes cast through an "instant runoff" as follows: 

a) Each district casting a vote shall rank the candidates in order of their preference. Completed ballots 

should indicate a "1" next to their first choice, a "2" next to their second choice, a "3" next to their third 

choice, etc. 

 

b) In counting the votes by the Selection Committee, all first choice votes are counted. If any candidate 

receives over 50 percent of the first choice votes, that candidate is selected as special district member. 

c) If no candidate receives a majority, then the candidate with the fewest "1" votes is eliminated. The 

ballots of the supporters of the eliminated candidate are then transferred to whichever of the remaining 

candidates they marked for their second choice. This process shall be continued until one candidate 

receives a majority of eligible ballots and is selected as special district member. 

d) In case of a tie between two people a coin toss shall be performed to break the tie. Should the tie be 

between 3 or more people the election office shall pick a method that gives all an equal chance. 

11. Should a vacancy occur during a special district member's term of office, a new election shall be held 

for the unexpired term of the special district member or alternate member according to the process above. 

32



 

 
 

 

2/6/2025 
 

 General Manager Report 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report  

□ Presentation 

 

AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

33



34



35



36



37



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\02062025\2nd Qtr Financial Report\ASR 2nd QTR Treasurer's Report Dec 2024.docx Page 1 of 4 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager  
(415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 

Meeting Date: February 6, 2025 

Re: Quarterly Treasurer’s & Financial Reports as of December 31, 2024 

Item Type:   Consent   Action  Information  X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 

 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Receive the Treasurer’s and Financial reports for the quarter ending December 31, 2024. 
 
BACKGROUND 
Board Policy F-20-10, Financial Reporting, and Board Policy F-70-120, Investment Reporting, 
require that quarterly reports be submitted to the Board. It is prudent and beneficial to present 
these reports to the Board at the same time. 
 
TREASURER’S REPORT 
Pursuant to the State of California Government Code Section 56300, the District’s investment 
policy adopted on July 21, 2022, and industry best practices, staff has prepared a quarterly 
treasurer’s report as of December 31, 2024. The attached report includes bank and investment 
accounts managed by the District. 
 

As specified in California Government Code Section 53646(e), if all funds are placed in the State of 
California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), in accounts insured or guaranteed pursuant to 
Section 14858 of the Financial Code, FDIC-insured accounts and/or in a county investment pool, 
the reporting elements may be replaced by copies of the latest statements from such institutions. 
 
The District maintains two debt reserve funds, equal to one year’s debt service for the State 
Revolving Fund and Bank of Marin loans. The quarterly account statements for the two Bank of 
Marin Certificates of Deposit accounts are included as part of this Treasurer’s Report. 
 
The District diversified from its primary investment account, LAIF, in January 2024. Two additional 
pooled investment accounts, California Cooperative Liquid Assets Security System (California 
CLASS) and California Asset Management Program (CAMP), were established in December 2023. 
Below are the investment summaries for the quarter ending December 31, 2024: 
 

• LAIF interest rate was 4.62%, down from 4.71% in September. Quarterly interest earned 
from LAIF was $17,456.58 which was deposited into our account for January 16, 2025. The 
most recent LAIF Remittance Advice statement from the California State Controller’s Office 
is attached.  

 

Item Number_________3.3_____ 

GM Review   _________CP_____ 

38

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\02062025\2nd Qtr Financial Report\ASR 2nd QTR Treasurer's Report Dec 2024.docx Page 2 of 4 

 
 

• California CLASS average monthly yield as of December 31 was 4.6385%, down from 
5.2597% at the end of the prior quarter. Interest dividend reinvestment is reported monthly. 
Total interest earned in the quarter was $14,903. Attached are the account summary 
pages from the monthly California CLASS statements this quarter. 
 

• CAMP monthly distribution yield as of December 31 was 4.73%, down from 5.29% at the 
end of the prior quarter. Total dividend and income earned in the quarter was $195,481. 
Attached are the account detail pages from the monthly CAMP statements this quarter. 
Restricted reserves of $19,520,630 are held in CAMP.  

 
Total investments of $27,047,083 are held in the District’s investment accounts and two restricted 
debt service accounts, which reflect an increase of $591,195 over the previous twelve months. 
 

The District’s investments comply with its investment policy and the District has sufficient funds 
available to meet its obligations for the next six months. 
 
Balance Statement 
As of December 31, 2024, the District holds a total of $33,222,522 in cash and investments, 
reflecting a decrease of $358,817 compared to December 31, 2023. The operating account 
balance fluctuates throughout the year based on the District's operational needs, making it 
common for the balance to shift from quarter to quarter or year to year. 
 
The District’s cash balance has been designated for the following specific uses: 
 

• Reserves: $19,520,630 in accordance with the District’s reserve policy. 

• Connection Fees: $1,114,533, available exclusively for capacity-related projects. 

• Debt Service Restricted Reserve Funds: $915,855, as mandated by loan covenants. 

• Private Sewer Lateral Assistance Program: $424,730 accumulated in cash for future 
assistance. 

• Recycled Water Capital Repair and Replacement Fund: $14,719 for future capital 
repairs at the Recycled Water Treatment Facility. 

• Special Assessment Funds: $14,238 for the Marin Lagoon pump station and $3,063 for 
the Captains Cove pump station's operation and maintenance. 

 
The remaining cash balance of $11,214,754 is available to cover operating and capital 
expenditures through June 30, 2025. Reserves funds are available for any unforeseen expenses 
and can be allocated for use by Board action if needed. 
   
QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORT 
In alignment with District policy for fiscal management and public agency accountability, staff are 
required to provide the Board of Directors with regular, transparent financial updates. A quarterly 
financial report ensures that the Board remains well-informed about the District's fiscal health, 
offering an opportunity to review financial performance against the adopted budget. 
 
 

39



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\02062025\2nd Qtr Financial Report\ASR 2nd QTR Treasurer's Report Dec 2024.docx Page 3 of 4 

 
The attached Expenditure Summaries for Operation & Maintenance and Capital Expenditures 
provides current fiscal year revenue and expenditures through December 31, 2024. These two 
reports compare actuals with the full fiscal year 2024-25 adopted budget, providing a snapshot of 
our current financial position. Staff will use these reports to develop a mid-year revised budget to 
be presented to the Board on February 20.  
 
General Fund revenue and expenditures are reported under Fund Accounts 10-xxx-xxxx, with 
expenses broken down by department to allow management and the Board to review the 
performance of each department independently. This level of detail allows for better financial 
oversight and targeted decision-making. 
 
General Fund (10-xxx-xxxx) Summary: 

• Revenue: xx-300-xxxx 

• Operating Expenses by Department: 

o Administration: xx-400-xxxx 

o Engineering:  xx-420-xxxx 

o Board of Directors: xx-440-xxxx 

o Collection System: xx-460-xxxx 

o Maintenance: xx-480-xxxx 

o Pump Station: xx-500-xxxx 

o Laboratory: xx-560-xxxx 

o Reclamation: xx-580-xxxx 

o Plant: xx-600-xxxx 
 

• Nondepartmental Expenses such as contributions and debt service are reported under 
xx-670-xxxx and xx-699-xxxx, respectively.  All required debt service payments this quarter 
have been paid. 

• Capital Projects are assigned their own account numbers grouped by department. The 
account numbers were renumbered (xx-xxx-7000 to xx-xxx-9999) to improve reporting. 
Expenditures include planning, design, software, collections, pump stations, reclamation, 
treatment plant improvements, and sludge pond management. Monitoring these accounts 
ensures that long-term infrastructure investments are progressing as planned. 

 
Restricted Funds are also included in the Budget Worksheet under separate fund accounts for 
Marin Lagoon (20-xxx-xxxx), Captain’s Cove (30-xxx-xxxx), Connection Fee (40-xxx-xxxx), and 
Recycled Water (60-xxx-xxxx). These funds are designated for specific purposes and must be 
tracked and managed in accordance with applicable legal requirements. 
 
SUMMARY 
Regular review of financial reports is essential for public agencies to ensure financial 
accountability, transparency, and sustainable fiscal management. These reports help provide a 

40



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\02062025\2nd Qtr Financial Report\ASR 2nd QTR Treasurer's Report Dec 2024.docx Page 4 of 4 

picture of the District’s financial health, allowing both management and the Board to make 
informed decisions. 
 

Key reasons for reviewing financial reports include: 

1. Promote Financial Accountability: Financial reports allow the Board and staff to monitor 
expenditures, revenues, and the allocation of resources. This helps to ensure that public 
funds are spent in accordance with approved budgets and legal requirements. 

2. Inform Decision-Making: Timely and accurate financial reports provide critical data that 
guide policy decisions, budgeting adjustments, and long-term planning. This ensures that 
decisions are based on the most current financial information available. 

3. Ensure Compliance with Legal and Regulatory Requirements: Many public funds, such 
as restricted reserves, connection fees, or grant funds, come with specific legal obligations. 
Reviewing financial reports ensures compliance with these requirements and helps avoid 
potential penalties or legal issues. 

4. Facilitate Budgetary Oversight: Ongoing financial reporting helps track actual 
performance against budgeted expectations. This allows the agency to address variances 
early and reallocate funds as necessary, ensuring that the budget remains balanced. 

5. Enhance Transparency and Public Trust: Regularly sharing financial reports with the 
Board and the public reinforces the agency’s commitment to transparency. It builds trust 
with stakeholders by showing that the agency is managing public funds responsibly and is 
proactively communicating its financial status. 

By consistently reviewing financial reports, the District ensures it can meet its operational needs, 
fund key projects, and maintain fiscal stability, all while upholding its commitment to accountability 
and transparency. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
N/A 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
No impact for receiving reports. 
 
 
Attachments: 

A. Treasurer’s Report – Operating and Investment Accounts as of December 31, 2024 
B. Bank of Marin Certificate of Deposit xxx679 Statement 9/30/24 –12/31/24 
C. Bank of Marin Certificate of Deposit xxx073 Statement 09/30/24 – 12/31/24 
D. Local Agency Investment Fund xx-005 Remittance Advice for quarter ending 12/30/24 
E. California CLASS – Account Statements for October, November, and December 2024 
F. CAMP Account Statements for October, November, and December 2024 
G. Expenditure Summaries – Actual to Budget Comparison - Period for 7/24 to 12/24 

 

41



I. Account Summary: Bank and Investment Accounts

2023 2024

Summary of Bank and Investment Accounts

OPERATIONS:
Bank of Marin

Operating Accounts 5,046,690 3,796,649            (1,250,041)         
Liquid Savings 230,297 239,523 9,226 

Private Sewer Lateral Rehab 407,269 424,730 17,461 
Surcharge-Marin Lagoon 10,715 14,238 3,523 
Surcharge-Captains Cove 3,718 3,063 (655) 
Connection Fee 858,752 1,114,533            255,781             
Capital Project Recycled Water Reserve Fund 24 14,719 14,695 

Petty cash 95 89 (6) 
Investment Accounts - 

Debt Service Reserve-Recycled Water 607,136 610,151 3,015 
Debt Service Reserve-SRF Loan 304,194 305,704 1,510 
Local Agency Investment Fund 25,544,558 882,075 (24,662,483)       
California Cooperative Liquid Assets Security System - 5,486,464 5,486,464          
California Asset Management Program - 19,762,689 19,762,689        

Cash and Investments 33,013,448$        32,654,627$        (358,821)$          

IBANK ISRF AGREEMENT: 567,760$             567,760$             (0)$  

RESTRICTED 2017 BOND 

US Bank Bond & Cost of Issuance Funds 131$  135$  4$  

TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS 33,581,339$        33,222,522$        (358,817)$          

II. Account Activity for Bank of Marin Accounts

Bank of Marin operating account activity is for paying regular operating expenses of the District.  Funds are
transferred from the Liquid Savings to the Operating account as needed.

Statement of Compliance:
The investments accounts are invested in compliance with the District's investment policy, adopted at the 
July 21, 2022  Board meeting and California Government Code Section 53600. In addition, the District does 

have the financial ability to meet  its cash flow requirements for the next six months.

Prepared by: Approved by: 

Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager Curtis Paxton, General Manager

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District
Treasurer's Report - Operating and Investment Accounts

December 31, 2024

December Change from 
Previous YearAccounts Summary

12%

5%

81%

2%

2024

16%

4%

79%

1%

2023

Operating

Restricted

Investment

Other / IBank

Q:\ACCOUNTING\QUARTERLY FINANCIALS\2024-25\2nd Qtr Dec\2nd QTR Treasurers Report Dec 2024 1/26/2025 9:37 AM

Attachment A

42



Account Number: xxxx-xx5679
Statement Period: 09/30/24 - 12/31/24
Page: 1 of 1

PO Box 2039
Novato, CA 94948-2039

Customer Service Information
Branch: 415-472-2265
Touch Tone Banking: 800-654-5111

Lost or Stolen Card:
24 hours 7 days per week 866-626-6004

Written Inquiries:
496 LAS GALLINAS AVE #4
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903

Visit us Online: www.bankofmarin.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
"BANK OF MARIN DEBT RESERVE"
101 LUCAS VALLEY RD SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903-1795

Account Summary for PUBLIC FUNDS JMBO CDxxxx-xx5679

Total Current Balance $610,150.77
Total Interest Year To Date $3,014.90

Transaction Detail

Date Description Deposits Withdrawals Balance
09/30 Beginning Balance $609,391.52
10/31 Interest 759.25 610,150.77
12/31 Ending Balance $610,150.77

Deposit Number 0000-000001
Principal $571,431.58
Current Balance $610,150.77
Total Interest Year To Date $3,014.90
Current Rate 0.494%

Original Deposit Amount $569,178.89
Original Deposit Date 08/01/12
Last Maturity Date 08/01/20
Current Term 60 Months, renewable
Next Maturity Date 08/01/25

00007970 00027172 0001 0001 BOMB1110010125071758 01

00007970 BOMB1110010125071758 01     0000

APBLBPGMFLGPBNGKEPANEMDK
ALFODLECFHGMPMPMLKGOLPKK
ADEMNDFOHLOPOIBKFDHOAEHK
ALHMODOPLMAFPGGBACPAALGK
ADPEKJMFHIKKEGOHKKGACDHK
AGKAGOKMKAOCGCGCAAAMMKEK

Attachment B

43



Account Number: xxxx-xx6073
Statement Period: 09/30/24 - 12/31/24
Page: 1 of 1

PO Box 2039
Novato, CA 94948-2039

Customer Service Information
Branch: 415-472-2265
Touch Tone Banking: 800-654-5111

Lost or Stolen Card:
24 hours 7 days per week 866-626-6004

Written Inquiries:
496 LAS GALLINAS AVE #4
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903

Visit us Online: www.bankofmarin.com

LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT
101 LUCAS VALLEY RD SUITE 300
SAN RAFAEL CA 94903-1795

Account Summary for PUBLIC FUNDS JMBO CDxxxx-xx6073

Total Current Balance $305,704.27
Total Interest Year To Date $1,510.56

Transaction Detail

Date Description Deposits Withdrawals Balance
09/30 Beginning Balance $305,323.86
10/29 Interest 380.41 305,704.27
12/31 Ending Balance $305,704.27

Deposit Number 0000-000001
Principal $286,304.76
Current Balance $305,704.27
Total Interest Year To Date $1,510.56
Current Rate 0.494%

Original Deposit Amount $286,304.76
Original Deposit Date 07/30/13
Last Maturity Date 07/30/20
Current Term 60 Months, renewable
Next Maturity Date 07/30/25

00007973 00027178 0001 0001 BOMB1110010125071758 01

00007973 BOMB1110010125071758 01     0000

APBLBPGMFLGPBNGKEPANEMDK
ALFODLECFHGMPEHMLKGPKPKK
ADEMNDFOHLOPMJBKFBDEPDHK
ALHMOBPPIPFFNMDKCHAMPLOK
ADPEJIEBFMAOOEPFJMDGEGHK
AGGKCOKIGIGOAKGCEMIOMCMK

Attachment C

44



MALIA M. COHEN

California State Controller

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND
REMITTANCE ADVICE

Agency Name LAS GALINAS VLY SANITARY DIST 

Account Number 70-21-005

As of 01/15/2025, your Local Agency Investment Fund account has been directly credited
with the interest earned on your deposits for the quarter ending 12/31/2024.

Earnings Ratio .00012664187216722

Interest Rate 4.62%

Dollar Day Total $ 137,842,093.72

Quarter End Principal Balance $ 882,075.05

Quarterly Interest Earned $ 17,456.58

1/25/25, 8:06 PM Untitled Page

https://laif.sco.ca.gov/Result.aspx 1/1

Attachment D

45



LGVSD Prime

Tel: (877) 930-5213 www.californiaclass.com

Account Statement
October 31, 2024

Page 2 of 3

Account Summary Average Monthly Yield:  5.0039%

Beginning
Balance Contributions Withdrawals

Income
Earned

Income
Earned

YTD
Average Daily

Balance
Month End

Balance
California CLASS 2,471,561.31 0.00 0.00 10,475.21 327,036.52 2,471,899.22 2,482,036.52

Transaction Activity

Transaction Date Transaction Description Contributions Withdrawals Balance Transaction Number

10/01/2024 Beginning Balance 2,471,561.31

10/31/2024 Income Dividend Reinvestment 10,475.21

10/31/2024 Ending Balance 2,482,036.52

Attachment E

46



LGVSD Prime

Tel: (877) 930-5213 www.californiaclass.com

Account Statement
November 30, 2024

Page 2 of 3

Account Summary Average Monthly Yield:  4.8272%

Beginning
Balance Contributions Withdrawals

Income
Earned

Income
Earned

YTD
Average Daily

Balance
Month End

Balance
California CLASS 2,482,036.52 0.00 2,000,000.00 1,907.31 328,943.83 482,163.67 483,943.83

Transaction Activity

Transaction Date Transaction Description Contributions Withdrawals Balance Transaction Number

11/01/2024 Beginning Balance 2,482,036.52

11/01/2024 Withdrawal 2,000,000.00 7432

11/30/2024 Income Dividend Reinvestment 1,907.31

11/30/2024 Ending Balance 483,943.83

47



LGVSD Prime

Tel: (877) 930-5213 www.californiaclass.com

Account Statement
December 31, 2024

Page 2 of 3

Account Summary Average Monthly Yield:  4.6385%

Beginning
Balance Contributions Withdrawals

Income
Earned

Income
Earned

YTD
Average Daily

Balance
Month End

Balance
California CLASS 483,943.83 5,000,000.00 0.00 2,520.27 331,464.10 645,315.45 5,486,464.10

Transaction Activity

Transaction Date Transaction Description Contributions Withdrawals Balance Transaction Number

12/01/2024 Beginning Balance 483,943.83

12/31/2024 Contribution 5,000,000.00 8141

12/31/2024 Income Dividend Reinvestment 2,520.27

12/31/2024 Ending Balance 5,486,464.10

48



For the Month Ending October 31, 2024Account Statement 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District - LGVSD CAMP - xxxx-01

Total Settlement Dollar AmountShare or Trade

Shares OwnedDate Transaction Description of TransactionUnit PriceDate

CAMP Pool

 15,976,586.04 Opening Balance

10/31/24 11/01/24 Accrual Income Div Reinvestment - Distributions  1.00  68,098.54  16,044,684.58 

 16,044,684.58 

 16,044,684.58 

 16,044,684.58 

 15,978,782.77 

 282,220.08 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 282,220.08 

 15,762,464.50 

 68,098.54 

 16,044,684.58 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 68,098.54 

 15,976,586.04 

Monthly Distribution Yield

Average Monthly Balance

Closing Balance

Fiscal YTDMonth of

Cash Dividends and Income

Closing Balance

Check Disbursements

Redemptions (Excl. Checks)

Purchases

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

October July-October

 5.03%

Account xxxx-01 Page 2PFM Asset Management, a division of 

U.S. Bancorp Asset Management, Inc.

Attachment F

49



For the Month Ending November 30, 2024Account Statement 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District - LGVSD CAMP - xxxx-01

Total Settlement Dollar AmountShare or Trade

Shares OwnedDate Transaction Description of TransactionUnit PriceDate

CAMP Pool

 16,044,684.58 Opening Balance

11/01/24 11/01/24 Redemption - Outgoing Wires  1.00 (205,700.00)  15,838,984.58 

11/29/24 12/02/24 Accrual Income Div Reinvestment - Distributions  1.00  63,232.67  15,902,217.25 

 15,902,217.25 

 15,902,217.25 

 15,902,217.25 

 15,843,200.09 

 345,452.75 

 0.00 

(205,700.00)

 345,452.75 

 15,762,464.50 

 63,232.67 

 15,902,217.25 

 0.00 

(205,700.00)

 63,232.67 

 16,044,684.58 

Monthly Distribution Yield

Average Monthly Balance

Closing Balance

Fiscal YTDMonth of

Cash Dividends and Income

Closing Balance

Check Disbursements

Redemptions (Excl. Checks)

Purchases

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

November July-November

 4.87%

Account xxxx-01 Page 2PFM Asset Management, a division of 

U.S. Bancorp Asset Management, Inc.

50



For the Month Ending December 31, 2024Account Statement 

Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District - LGVSD CAMP - xxxx-01

Total Settlement Dollar AmountShare or Trade

Shares OwnedDate Transaction Description of TransactionUnit PriceDate

CAMP Pool

 15,902,217.25 Opening Balance

12/31/24 12/31/24 Purchase - Incoming Wires  1.00  3,796,322.00  19,698,539.25 

12/31/24 01/02/25 Accrual Income Div Reinvestment - Distributions  1.00  64,149.29  19,762,688.54 

 19,762,688.54 

 19,762,688.54 

 19,762,688.54 

 16,026,748.58 

 409,602.04 

 0.00 

(205,700.00)

 4,205,924.04 

 15,762,464.50 

 64,149.29 

 19,762,688.54 

 0.00 

 0.00 

 3,860,471.29 

 15,902,217.25 

Monthly Distribution Yield

Average Monthly Balance

Closing Balance

Fiscal YTDMonth of

Cash Dividends and Income

Closing Balance

Check Disbursements

Redemptions (Excl. Checks)

Purchases

Opening Balance

Closing Balance

December July-December

 4.73%

Account xxxx-01 Page 2PFM Asset Management, a division of 

U.S. Bancorp Asset Management, Inc.

51



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

SEWER USE CHARGES

10-310-4110 SSC SPECIAL ASSESSMENT-CURRENT 10,588,934.03 19,573,597.50 54.1

10-310-4115 SEWER SERVICE CHRG DIRECT BILL 1,136,965.91 1,275,000.00 89.2

10-310-4120 SEWER SERVICE CHARGE PY 89,850.00 20,000.00 449.3

10-310-4130 SSC LISRAP 10% DISCOUNT (4,860.00) (25,000.00) (19.4)

TOTAL SEWER USE CHARGES 11,810,889.94 20,843,597.50 573.1

PERMITS/FEES

10-330-4310 PERMITS AND INSPECTION FEES 25,945.44 53,400.00 48.6

10-330-4313 APPLICATION FEES 4,750.00 6,500.00 73.1

TOTAL PERMITS/FEES 30,695.44 59,900.00 121.7

PROPERTY TAXES

10-340-4405 PROPERTY TAX - CURRENT SECURED 669,725.57 1,273,290.00 52.6

10-340-4410 PROPERTY TAX - CURRENT UNSECUR 19,277.11 21,400.00 90.1

10-340-4415 PRIOR SECURED REDEMPTION 648.28 100.00 648.3

10-340-4420 PRIOR UNSECURED 1,128.45 1,300.00 86.8

10-340-4427 SUPP. ASSMNTS - PROP TAX CURR 4,954.42 25,490.00 19.4

10-340-4428 SUPP. ASSMNTS - REDEMPTION .00 1,170.00 .0

10-340-4440 ERAF 273,309.05 264,280.00 103.4

10-340-4441 ERAF PRIOR YEAR 63,900.96 216,230.00 29.6

TOTAL PROPERTY TAXES 1,032,943.84 1,803,260.00 1030.2

FRANCHISE FEES

10-350-4510 FRANCHISE REVENUE 94,839.54 185,440.00 51.1

TOTAL FRANCHISE FEES 94,839.54 185,440.00 51.1

INTERGOVERNMENTAL

10-360-4610 FEDERAL AND STATE GRANTS .00 5,000.00 .0

10-360-4620 HOPTR 617.45 2,360.00 26.2

TOTAL INTERGOVERNMENTAL 617.45 7,360.00 26.2

Attachment GExpenditure Summaries

52



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

INVESTMENT INCOME

10-370-4710 BANK INTEREST - OPERATIONS 71,302.46 89,730.00 79.5

10-370-4711 INTEREST - LAIF 22,057.92 80,000.00 27.6

10-370-4713 INTEREST ON BOND FUNDS 3.50 5.00 70.0

10-370-4714 INTEREST ON IBANK ISRF 30,785.41 .00 .0

10-370-4715 INTEREST ON RESERVES CD X6073 756.21 1,540.00 49.1

10-370-4716 INTEREST - CAMP 409,602.04 388,190.00 105.5

10-370-4717 INTEREST - CLASS 83,988.70 233,020.00 36.0

TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME 618,496.24 792,485.00 367.7

OTHER NONOPERATING

10-380-4881 PSL PRIOR YEAR .00 1,000.00 .0

10-380-4882 PSL LEVY PRINCIPAL 44,870.85 82,000.00 54.7

10-380-4885 MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 25,762.35 40,120.00 64.2

10-380-4887 PSL DIRECT PAY OFF 1,134.22 10,000.00 11.3

10-380-4888 PSL INVESTMENT INTEREST 8,119.48 7,000.00 116.0

10-380-4890 DONATIONS (RECEIVED) .00 500.00 .0

10-380-4899 PASSTHRU REIMBURSMNT (REVENUE) (984.00) 25,000.00 (3.9)

TOTAL OTHER NONOPERATING 78,902.90 165,620.00 242.3

TRANSFERS IN

10-390-4910 TRANSFER - I BANK LOAN .00 567,760.00 .0

TOTAL TRANSFERS IN .00 567,760.00 .0

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 13,667,385.35 24,425,422.50 2412.2

53



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

ADMINISTRATION

10-400-5000 REGULAR STAFF SALARIES 533,286.22 1,107,800.00 48.1

10-400-5010 OVERTIME 5,870.01 10,100.00 58.1

10-400-5020 DOUBLETIME 504.83 900.00 56.1

10-400-5060 AUTO ALLOWANCE 2,655.92 5,800.00 45.8

10-400-5075 CERTIFICATION STIPENDS 5,399.94 16,200.00 33.3

10-400-5077 LONGEVITY PAY 5,801.75 8,100.00 71.6

10-400-5090 VACATION/SICK ACCRUAL .00 17,600.00 .0

10-400-5110 HEALTH INSURANCE-ACTIVES 81,466.77 136,800.00 59.6

10-400-5111 HEALTH INSURANCE-RETIREES 19,305.46 62,700.00 30.8

10-400-5112 HEALTH INSURANCE-ADMIN FEE 173.35 1,600.00 10.8

10-400-5117 DENTAL INSURANCE 4,424.05 22,800.00 19.4

10-400-5119 VISION SERVICES 386.37 5,100.00 7.6

10-400-5120 PERS-NORMAL CONTRIBUTIONS 30,311.95 83,300.00 36.4

10-400-5130 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE 26,589.05 64,500.00 41.2

10-400-5140 WORKERS COMP INSURANCE 63,869.00 111,400.00 57.3

10-400-5150 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE 3,977.58 10,900.00 36.5

10-400-5160 LONG TERM DISABILITY 4,217.04 13,400.00 31.5

10-400-5170 WELLNESS REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 1,288.21 2,500.00 51.5

10-400-5221 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 4,307.04 32,200.00 13.4

10-400-5223 MEETING SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 957.50 3,700.00 25.9

10-400-5224 DAMAGE CLAIMS 85.00 .00 .0

10-400-5225 COVID-19 EXPENSES .00 1,000.00 .0

10-400-5229 EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION 2,097.44 2,500.00 83.9

10-400-5233 VEHICLE GAS ADMIN .00 500.00 .0

10-400-5243 MISC SAFETY EXP - LGVSD ONLY 891.21 3,200.00 27.9

10-400-5303 PAYROLL PROCESSING FEES 13,062.15 25,900.00 50.4

10-400-5310 VEHICLE PARTS & REPAIRS 442.80 1,700.00 26.1

10-400-5315 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE .00 300.00 .0

10-400-5317 EQUIPMENT REPAIR 437.00 2,000.00 21.9

10-400-5319 CAPITAL REPAIR / REPLACEMENT .00 1,000.00 .0

10-400-5331 PERSONNEL & HR SERVICES 17,699.38 103,900.00 17.0

10-400-5333 JANITORIAL 12,402.10 24,400.00 50.8

10-400-5335 LABOR RELATIONS .00 17,600.00 .0

10-400-5337 GENERAL 11,250.88 15,900.00 70.8

10-400-5339 OTHER OUTSIDE SERVICES 1,012.50 900.00 112.5

10-400-5342 OTHER CONSULTANTS 74,659.76 144,300.00 51.7

10-400-5347 PUBLIC EDUCATION 18,847.05 42,000.00 44.9

10-400-5351 LEGAL 59,792.18 148,400.00 40.3

10-400-5352 LEGAL MPFA .00 800.00 .0

10-400-5353 AUDIT 22,000.00 22,000.00 100.0

10-400-5355 FINANCIAL SERVICES 4,385.00 95,400.00 4.6

10-400-5361 CONSULTING IT SERVICES 6,075.00 32,600.00 18.6

10-400-5362 INCIDENTAL SOFTWARE 30,373.31 22,700.00 133.8

10-400-5363 MULTI-YEAR SAAS SOFTWARE SUBSC .00 100.00 .0

10-400-5411 INSURANCE - GEN LIAB PROPERTY 375,232.67 373,800.00 100.4

10-400-5421 INTERNET SERVICES 195.91 7,100.00 2.8

10-400-5423 TELEPHONE AND CELL SERVICES 3,595.23 6,400.00 56.2

10-400-5431 BANK CHARGES .00 1,900.00 .0

10-400-5433 PUBLICATIONS & LEGAL ADS 1,647.50 2,000.00 82.4

10-400-5439 DONATIONS TO NON-PROFITS 10,000.00 10,000.00 100.0

10-400-5451 RENTS & LEASES - OFFICE & EQUI 69,922.45 136,500.00 51.2

10-400-5453 TAXES, OTHER .00 500.00 .0

10-400-5455 PERMITS AND FEES 709.50 800.00 88.7

10-400-5457 USER CHG / COLLECTION FEE EXP. .00 800.00 .0

10-400-5461 MEMBERSHIPS 41,150.29 44,900.00 91.7

54



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

10-400-5465 CONFERENCES 3,134.72 20,700.00 15.1

10-400-5467 MILEAGE & TRAVEL 859.96 6,000.00 14.3

10-400-5469 EMPLOYEE EDUCATION & TRAINING 1,800.00 15,700.00 11.5

10-400-5496 FIDELITY BOND 1,216.00 1,200.00 101.3

10-400-9999 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE 188.00 800.00 23.5

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 1,579,957.03 3,055,600.00 51.7

ENGINEERING

10-420-5000 REGULAR STAFF SALARIES 260,350.31 609,900.00 42.7

10-420-5060 AUTO ALLOWANCE 2,655.92 5,400.00 49.2

10-420-5075 CERTIFICATION STIPENDS 5,399.94 16,200.00 33.3

10-420-5077 LONGEVITY PAY 17,063.38 30,500.00 56.0

10-420-5090 VACATION/SICK ACCRUAL .00 20,000.00 .0

10-420-5110 HEALTH INSURANCE-ACTIVES 33,606.04 73,700.00 45.6

10-420-5117 DENTAL INSURANCE 2,146.33 10,000.00 21.5

10-420-5119 VISION SERVICES 82.56 700.00 11.8

10-420-5120 PERS-NORMAL CONTRIBUTIONS 23,306.09 52,000.00 44.8

10-420-5130 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE 13,227.57 34,900.00 37.9

10-420-5150 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE 806.85 1,600.00 50.4

10-420-5160 LONG TERM DISABILITY 2,579.98 5,700.00 45.3

10-420-5170 WELLNESS REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 1,000.00 1,500.00 66.7

10-420-5221 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 1,409.37 1,700.00 82.9

10-420-5243 MISC SAFETY EXP - LGVSD ONLY 325.00 900.00 36.1

10-420-5301 CONTRACT PERSONNEL .00 40,000.00 .0

10-420-5342 OTHER CONSULTANTS 30,095.75 140,000.00 21.5

10-420-5344 PASSTHRU (RECEIVABLE EXPENSE) .00 14,200.00 .0

10-420-5361 CONSULTING IT SERVICES 937.50 500.00 187.5

10-420-5362 INCIDENTAL SOFTWARE 239.76 3,100.00 7.7

10-420-5415 GENERAL SMALL PROJECTS 4,529.58 25,200.00 18.0

10-420-5417 FEASIBILITY STUDIES .00 64,000.00 .0

10-420-5423 TELEPHONE AND CELL SERVICES 988.65 2,200.00 44.9

10-420-5433 PUBLICATIONS & LEGAL ADS 5,413.20 8,100.00 66.8

10-420-5455 PERMITS AND FEES .00 400.00 .0

10-420-5461 MEMBERSHIPS .00 1,700.00 .0

10-420-5469 EMPLOYEE EDUCATION & TRAINING .00 8,000.00 .0

TOTAL ENGINEERING 406,163.78 1,172,100.00 34.7

55



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

10-440-5050 DIRECTOR'S COMPENSATION 35,474.16 77,600.00 45.7

10-440-5115 DIRECTORS HEALTH BENEFITS 4,370.00 10,900.00 40.1

10-440-5130 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE 2,706.42 4,700.00 57.6

10-440-5221 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 218.55 8,300.00 2.6

10-440-5223 MEETING SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 207.81 8,100.00 2.6

10-440-5331 PERSONNEL & HR SERVICES .00 10,000.00 .0

10-440-5342 OTHER CONSULTANTS .00 5,000.00 .0

10-440-5359 ELECTION EXPENSES .00 25,000.00 .0

10-440-5423 TELEPHONE AND CELL SERVICES 152.04 400.00 38.0

10-440-5461 MEMBERSHIPS .00 1,000.00 .0

10-440-5465 CONFERENCES 695.00 36,700.00 1.9

10-440-5467 MILEAGE & TRAVEL 14,112.76 1,000.00 1411.3

10-440-5469 EMPLOYEE EDUCATION & TRAINING .00 2,500.00 .0

10-440-9999 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE .00 7,500.00 .0

TOTAL BOARD OF DIRECTORS 57,936.74 198,700.00 29.2

56



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

COLLECTION SYSTEM

10-460-5000 REGULAR STAFF SALARIES 458,880.09 918,100.00 50.0

10-460-5010 OVERTIME 12,415.49 48,200.00 25.8

10-460-5020 DOUBLETIME 5,064.31 8,600.00 58.9

10-460-5030 STAND BY 29,279.76 54,700.00 53.5

10-460-5073 EMERGENCY RESPONSE STIPEND 12,969.00 27,900.00 46.5

10-460-5075 CERTIFICATION STIPENDS 21,599.76 32,400.00 66.7

10-460-5077 LONGEVITY PAY 24,760.83 45,400.00 54.5

10-460-5090 VACATION/SICK ACCRUAL .00 15,000.00 .0

10-460-5110 HEALTH INSURANCE-ACTIVES 80,090.17 148,200.00 54.0

10-460-5111 HEALTH INSURANCE-RETIREES 1,496.03 3,700.00 40.4

10-460-5117 DENTAL INSURANCE 6,231.77 7,800.00 79.9

10-460-5119 VISION SERVICES 451.64 1,600.00 28.2

10-460-5120 PERS-NORMAL CONTRIBUTIONS 58,830.98 98,300.00 59.9

10-460-5130 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE 37,335.82 87,000.00 42.9

10-460-5150 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE 1,123.65 3,400.00 33.1

10-460-5160 LONG TERM DISABILITY 5,024.69 8,000.00 62.8

10-460-5170 WELLNESS REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 500.00 3,500.00 14.3

10-460-5211 GENERAL OPERATING SUPPLIES .00 6,000.00 .0

10-460-5221 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE .00 5,000.00 .0

10-460-5222 SMALL TOOLS 243.55 3,400.00 7.2

10-460-5231 DIESEL COLLECTIONS 8,616.99 9,700.00 88.8

10-460-5233 VEHICLE GAS COLLECTIONS 6,066.61 9,600.00 63.2

10-460-5234 VEHICLE NATURAL GAS .00 900.00 .0

10-460-5235 OIL (VEHICLE AND DRUM PRODUCT) .00 100.00 .0

10-460-5241 SAFETY CONTRACTOR SERVICES 26,435.00 57,000.00 46.4

10-460-5243 MISC SAFETY EXP - LGVSD ONLY 3,317.99 16,400.00 20.2

10-460-5310 VEHICLE PARTS & REPAIRS 20,115.13 25,600.00 78.6

10-460-5311 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 3,901.34 4,700.00 83.0

10-460-5312 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 1,984.12 2,400.00 82.7

10-460-5315 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 7,093.98 37,000.00 19.2

10-460-5317 EQUIPMENT REPAIR 10,640.98 11,700.00 91.0

10-460-5319 CAPITAL REPAIR / REPLACEMENT .00 1,000.00 .0

10-460-5334 UNIFORM MAINTENANCE 9,623.48 12,200.00 78.9

10-460-5337 GENERAL 1,007.39 .00 .0

10-460-5339 OTHER OUTSIDE SERVICES .00 23,200.00 .0

10-460-5361 CONSULTING IT SERVICES 75.00 6,600.00 1.1

10-460-5362 INCIDENTAL SOFTWARE 192.00 11,400.00 1.7

10-460-5363 SUBSCRIPTION SOFTWARE SAAS 11,500.95 39,700.00 29.0

10-460-5423 TELEPHONE AND CELL SERVICES 2,804.71 6,100.00 46.0

10-460-5441 LATERAL REHAB ASSISTANCE PROG .00 187,800.00 .0

10-460-5455 PERMITS AND FEES 4,202.33 4,400.00 95.5

10-460-5461 MEMBERSHIPS 7,104.57 6,100.00 116.5

10-460-5469 EMPLOYEE EDUCATION & TRAINING 925.00 15,600.00 5.9

TOTAL COLLECTION SYSTEM 881,905.11 2,015,400.00 43.8

57



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

MAINTENANCE

10-480-5000 REGULAR STAFF SALARIES 244,663.64 641,000.00 38.2

10-480-5010 OVERTIME 605.06 8,000.00 7.6

10-480-5020 DOUBLETIME 750.38 400.00 187.6

10-480-5030 STAND BY .00 32,000.00 .0

10-480-5073 EMERGENCY RESPONSE STIPEND 450.00 3,900.00 11.5

10-480-5075 CERTIFICATION STIPENDS 14,122.92 32,400.00 43.6

10-480-5077 LONGEVITY PAY 4,036.36 3,600.00 112.1

10-480-5090 VACATION/SICK ACCRUAL .00 12,000.00 .0

10-480-5110 HEALTH INSURANCE-ACTIVES 21,908.83 84,600.00 25.9

10-480-5117 DENTAL INSURANCE 511.62 4,000.00 12.8

10-480-5119 VISION SERVICES 242.04 700.00 34.6

10-480-5120 PERS-NORMAL CONTRIBUTIONS 2,885.41 26,100.00 11.1

10-480-5130 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE 18,393.27 60,800.00 30.3

10-480-5150 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE 416.02 2,500.00 16.6

10-480-5160 LONG TERM DISABILITY 1,431.33 6,000.00 23.9

10-480-5170 WELLNESS REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 865.10 2,500.00 34.6

10-480-5211 GENERAL OPERATING SUPPLIES .00 600.00 .0

10-480-5221 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE .00 1,000.00 .0

10-480-5222 SMALL TOOLS 10,065.44 12,000.00 83.9

10-480-5232 PROPANE 70.63 400.00 17.7

10-480-5235 OIL (VEHICLE AND DRUM PRODUCT) .00 500.00 .0

10-480-5243 MISC SAFETY EXP - LGVSD ONLY 1,300.00 12,800.00 10.2

10-480-5310 VEHICLE PARTS & REPAIRS 43.69 18,400.00 .2

10-480-5311 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 1,526.48 12,200.00 12.5

10-480-5312 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 4,326.81 12,700.00 34.1

10-480-5313 POWER GENERATION MAINT.&  REP 450.00 1,300.00 34.6

10-480-5315 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 25,095.11 33,500.00 74.9

10-480-5317 EQUIPMENT REPAIR 4,913.23 22,700.00 21.6

10-480-5319 CAPITAL REPAIR / REPLACEMENT .00 4,400.00 .0

10-480-5331 PERSONNEL & HR SERVICES 335.00 .00 .0

10-480-5337 GENERAL 578.00 .00 .0

10-480-5339 OTHER OUTSIDE SERVICES 25,503.06 54,500.00 46.8

10-480-5361 CONSULTING IT SERVICES 5,565.00 .00 .0

10-480-5362 INCIDENTAL SOFTWARE .00 2,500.00 .0

10-480-5423 TELEPHONE AND CELL SERVICES 1,043.79 2,700.00 38.7

10-480-5461 MEMBERSHIPS 350.00 900.00 38.9

10-480-5469 EMPLOYEE EDUCATION & TRAINING 2,315.00 4,600.00 50.3

TOTAL MAINTENANCE 394,763.22 1,118,200.00 35.3

58



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

PUMP STATIONS

10-500-5221 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 14,090.11 .00 .0

10-500-5243 MISC SAFETY EXP - LGVSD ONLY .00 1,800.00 .0

10-500-5312 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 3,832.26 4,600.00 83.3

10-500-5315 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 6,514.27 100.00 6514.3

10-500-5317 EQUIPMENT REPAIR 1,929.82 7,200.00 26.8

10-500-5319 CAPITAL REPAIR / REPLACEMENT 1,412.70 46,700.00 3.0

10-500-5342 OTHER CONSULTANTS .00 10,000.00 .0

10-500-5345 SCADA ENGINEERING SUPPORT 31,018.45 36,500.00 85.0

10-500-5421 INTERNET SERVICES 269.65 2,200.00 12.3

10-500-5423 TELEPHONE AND CELL SERVICES 4,083.35 10,300.00 39.6

10-500-5425 UTILITY POWER 74,137.78 153,100.00 48.4

10-500-5427 WATER 7,442.37 5,300.00 140.4

10-500-5455 PERMITS AND FEES .00 2,700.00 .0

TOTAL PUMP STATIONS 144,730.76 280,500.00 51.6

59



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

LABORATORY

10-560-5000 REGULAR STAFF SALARIES 130,038.97 296,700.00 43.8

10-560-5010 OVERTIME 1,149.84 6,300.00 18.3

10-560-5020 DOUBLETIME 542.60 3,600.00 15.1

10-560-5030 STAND BY 2,718.71 8,600.00 31.6

10-560-5073 EMERGENCY RESPONSE STIPEND 1,799.98 3,800.00 47.4

10-560-5075 CERTIFICATION STIPENDS 2,699.97 5,800.00 46.6

10-560-5077 LONGEVITY PAY 4,415.93 9,000.00 49.1

10-560-5090 VACATION/SICK ACCRUAL .00 8,000.00 .0

10-560-5110 HEALTH INSURANCE-ACTIVES 11,931.72 32,900.00 36.3

10-560-5117 DENTAL INSURANCE 881.66 1,300.00 67.8

10-560-5119 VISION SERVICES 169.32 300.00 56.4

10-560-5120 PERS-NORMAL CONTRIBUTIONS 9,304.91 14,400.00 64.6

10-560-5130 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE 9,394.88 18,700.00 50.2

10-560-5150 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE 272.10 800.00 34.0

10-560-5160 LONG TERM DISABILITY 1,505.48 2,300.00 65.5

10-560-5170 WELLNESS REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM .00 500.00 .0

10-560-5211 GENERAL OPERATING SUPPLIES .00 4,800.00 .0

10-560-5221 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 1,026.05 7,100.00 14.5

10-560-5243 MISC SAFETY EXP - LGVSD ONLY 650.00 1,100.00 59.1

10-560-5284 LABORATORY SUPPLIES 4,058.28 32,600.00 12.5

10-560-5310 VEHICLE PARTS & REPAIRS 188.20 1,100.00 17.1

10-560-5315 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 868.65 4,300.00 20.2

10-560-5317 EQUIPMENT REPAIR .00 2,800.00 .0

10-560-5319 CAPITAL REPAIR / REPLACEMENT .00 4,100.00 .0

10-560-5327 POLLUTION PREVENTION CONTRACT 6,604.65 17,300.00 38.2

10-560-5329 LAB CONTRACT SERVICES 40,449.42 68,500.00 59.1

10-560-5339 OTHER OUTSIDE SERVICES .00 3,700.00 .0

10-560-5342 OTHER CONSULTANTS .00 5,200.00 .0

10-560-5361 CONSULTING IT SERVICES 7,850.63 .00 .0

10-560-5362 INCIDENTAL SOFTWARE .00 500.00 .0

10-560-5423 TELEPHONE AND CELL SERVICES 358.65 1,100.00 32.6

10-560-5455 PERMITS AND FEES 5,525.00 7,500.00 73.7

10-560-5461 MEMBERSHIPS .00 900.00 .0

10-560-5465 CONFERENCES .00 4,800.00 .0

10-560-5467 MILEAGE & TRAVEL .00 100.00 .0

10-560-5469 EMPLOYEE EDUCATION & TRAINING 50.00 6,600.00 .8

TOTAL LABORATORY 244,455.60 587,100.00 41.6

60



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

RECLAMATION

10-580-5312 GROUNDS AND POND MAINTENANCE 3,627.05 97,400.00 3.7

10-580-5315 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE .00 1,700.00 .0

10-580-5317 EQUIPMENT REPAIR .00 1,200.00 .0

10-580-5323 PASTURE DISK 48,416.50 126,300.00 38.3

10-580-5325 SLUDGE INJECT & LAND APPLICATI 233,044.00 380,000.00 61.3

10-580-5326 MARSH POND VEGETATION REMOVAL .00 60,000.00 .0

10-580-5339 OTHER OUTSIDE SERVICES .00 16,800.00 .0

10-580-5342 OTHER CONSULTANTS 2,196.00 17,400.00 12.6

10-580-5417 FEASIBILITY STUDIES .00 10,000.00 .0

10-580-5425 UTILITY POWER 24,177.14 47,800.00 50.6

10-580-5455 PERMITS AND FEES .00 500.00 .0

TOTAL RECLAMATION 311,460.69 759,100.00 41.0

61



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

PLANT

10-600-5000 REGULAR STAFF SALARIES 595,905.28 1,147,400.00 51.9

10-600-5010 OVERTIME 35,554.59 84,800.00 41.9

10-600-5020 DOUBLETIME 17,821.73 32,200.00 55.4

10-600-5030 STAND BY 32,543.04 58,000.00 56.1

10-600-5060 AUTO ALLOWANCE 2,655.92 5,300.00 50.1

10-600-5073 EMERGENCY RESPONSE STIPEND 15,599.76 28,700.00 54.4

10-600-5075 CERTIFICATION STIPENDS 30,945.81 68,600.00 45.1

10-600-5077 LONGEVITY PAY 19,032.90 34,200.00 55.7

10-600-5090 VACATION/SICK ACCRUAL .00 18,000.00 .0

10-600-5110 HEALTH INSURANCE-ACTIVES 101,269.81 236,500.00 42.8

10-600-5111 HEALTH INSURANCE-RETIREES 28,607.39 48,800.00 58.6

10-600-5117 DENTAL INSURANCE 4,321.33 11,300.00 38.2

10-600-5119 VISION SERVICES 386.50 700.00 55.2

10-600-5120 PERS-NORMAL CONTRIBUTIONS 75,084.54 144,700.00 51.9

10-600-5130 SOCIAL SECURITY EXPENSE 46,297.55 103,200.00 44.9

10-600-5150 GROUP LIFE INSURANCE 1,590.75 5,000.00 31.8

10-600-5160 LONG TERM DISABILITY 6,602.67 14,900.00 44.3

10-600-5170 WELLNESS REIMBURSEMENT PROGRAM 2,286.97 4,000.00 57.2

10-600-5211 GENERAL OPERATING SUPPLIES 8,241.79 3,400.00 242.4

10-600-5221 OFFICE SUPPLIES & EXPENSE 145.00 4,800.00 3.0

10-600-5222 SMALL TOOLS 3,252.86 6,100.00 53.3

10-600-5223 MEETING SUPPLIES & EXPENSE .00 600.00 .0

10-600-5231 DIESEL PLANT 1,072.75 9,700.00 11.1

10-600-5232 PROPANE 1,858.92 4,000.00 46.5

10-600-5233 VEHICLE GAS PLANT 1,695.71 8,400.00 20.2

10-600-5241 SAFETY CONTRACTOR SERVICES .00 900.00 .0

10-600-5243 MISC SAFETY EXP - LGVSD ONLY 2,719.30 5,200.00 52.3

10-600-5281 HYPOCHLORITE 302,082.83 347,300.00 87.0

10-600-5282 BISULFITE 44,683.56 211,800.00 21.1

10-600-5283 MISCELLANEOUS CHEMICALS 36,123.36 74,700.00 48.4

10-600-5284 LABORATORY SUPPLIES 2,432.92 1,900.00 128.1

10-600-5301 CONTRACT PERSONNEL .00 60,000.00 .0

10-600-5310 VEHICLE PARTS & REPAIRS 4,216.20 1,900.00 221.9

10-600-5311 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 13,605.11 13,900.00 97.9

10-600-5312 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE 25,767.04 23,500.00 109.7

10-600-5313 POWER GENERATION MAINT.&  REP .00 14,900.00 .0

10-600-5315 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 24,646.10 54,300.00 45.4

10-600-5317 EQUIPMENT REPAIR 14,683.78 14,200.00 103.4

10-600-5319 CAPITAL REPAIR / REPLACEMENT 91,711.11 73,400.00 125.0

10-600-5334 UNIFORM MAINTENANCE 9,623.53 11,700.00 82.3

10-600-5337 GENERAL 3,128.28 8,300.00 37.7

10-600-5339 OTHER OUTSIDE SERVICES 7,905.61 17,500.00 45.2

10-600-5341 ENVIRONMENTAL 26,705.30 145,300.00 18.4

10-600-5342 OTHER CONSULTANTS 4,588.25 15,700.00 29.2

10-600-5345 SCADA ENGINEERING SUPPORT 31,018.44 36,500.00 85.0

10-600-5361 CONSULTING IT SERVICES 10,111.41 15,600.00 64.8

10-600-5362 INCIDENTAL SOFTWARE .00 2,000.00 .0

10-600-5423 TELEPHONE AND CELL SERVICES 3,512.84 8,400.00 41.8

10-600-5425 UTILITY POWER 314,313.73 641,700.00 49.0

10-600-5427 WATER 5,234.77 27,400.00 19.1

10-600-5433 PUBLICATIONS & LEGAL ADS .00 3,400.00 .0

10-600-5455 PERMITS AND FEES 29,364.00 69,800.00 42.1

10-600-5461 MEMBERSHIPS 8,093.00 16,600.00 48.8

10-600-5465 CONFERENCES 360.60 12,000.00 3.0

10-600-5467 MILEAGE & TRAVEL 449.34 1,300.00 34.6

62



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

10-600-5469 EMPLOYEE EDUCATION & TRAINING 1,894.00 13,200.00 14.4

TOTAL PLANT 2,051,747.98 4,027,600.00 50.9

NONDEPARTMENTAL CONTRIBUTIONS

10-670-5113 HEALTH INSURANCE-OPEB PRE-FUND 69,780.00 192,200.00 36.3

10-670-5120 PERS-NORMAL CONTRIBUTIONS UAL 372,889.00 306,600.00 121.6

10-670-5129 GASB PENSION EXPENSE 700.00 .00 .0

TOTAL NONDEPARTMENTAL CONTRIBUTIONS 443,369.00 498,800.00 88.9

NONDEPARTMENTAL DEBT SERVICE

10-699-5511 2004 COP/REFUNDING  PRINCIPAL 690,000.00 690,000.00 100.0

10-699-5512 IBANK PRINCIPAL 381,557.04 381,557.00 100.0

10-699-5513 STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN PRIN .00 230,669.00 .0

10-699-5514 2011BANK OF MARIN LOAN PRINCIP 127,291.87 257,318.00 49.5

10-699-5516 2017 REVENUE BONDS PRINCIPAL .00 1,205,000.00 .0

10-699-5521 2004 COP/REFUNDING MF INTEREST 23,245.20 35,105.00 66.2

10-699-5522 IBANK LOAN INTEREST 153,788.71 301,854.00 51.0

10-699-5523 STATE REVOLVING FUND LOAN INTE .00 54,795.00 .0

10-699-5524 2011BANK OF MARIN LOAN INTERES 39,048.83 75,363.00 51.8

10-699-5526 2017 REVENUE BONDS INTEREST 622,200.00 1,244,400.00 50.0

10-699-5552 LOAN ANNUAL FEES - IBANK 30,757.74 30,758.00 100.0

TOTAL NONDEPARTMENTAL DEBT SERVICE 2,067,889.39 4,506,819.00 45.9

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 8,584,379.30 18,219,919.00 47.1

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 5,083,006.05 6,205,503.50 81.9

63



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

MARIN LAGOON

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

MARIN LAGOON SSC SURCHARGE

20-310-4110 SSC SPECIAL ASSESSMENT-CURRENT 13,612.50 13,612.50 100.0

TOTAL MARIN LAGOON SSC SURCHARGE 13,612.50 13,612.50 100.0

INVESTMENT INCOME

20-370-4710 BANK INTEREST - MARIN LAGOON 268.76 400.00 67.2

TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME 268.76 400.00 67.2

TOTAL FUND REVENUE (         8,570,498.04) (       18,205,906.50) (  47.1)

64



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

MARIN LAGOON

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

MARIN LAGOON EXPENSES

20-540-5000 REGULAR STAFF SALARIES 1,869.28 9,100.00 20.5

20-540-5010 OVERTIME .00 600.00 .0

20-540-5312 GROUNDS MAINTENANCE .00 500.00 .0

20-540-5317 EQUIPMENT REPAIR .00 1,000.00 .0

20-540-5319 CAPITAL REPAIR / REPLACEMENT .00 1,000.00 .0

TOTAL MARIN LAGOON EXPENSES 1,869.28 12,200.00 15.3

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,869.28 12,200.00 15.3

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 5,095,018.03 6,207,316.00 82.1

65



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

CAPTAIN'S COVE

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

CAPTAIN'S COVE SSC SURCHARGE

30-310-4110 SSC SPECIAL ASSESSMENT-CURRENT 8,800.00 8,800.00 100.0

TOTAL CAPTAIN'S COVE SSC SURCHARGE 8,800.00 8,800.00 100.0

INVESTMENT INCOME

30-370-4710 BANK INTEREST - CAPTAINS COVE 56.21 250.00 22.5

TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME 56.21 250.00 22.5

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 6,986.93 (                3,150.00) 221.8

66



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

CAPTAIN'S COVE

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

CAPTAIN'S COVE EXPENSES

30-520-5000 REGULAR STAFF SALARIES 1,449.31 10,000.00 14.5

30-520-5315 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE .00 700.00 .0

30-520-5317 EQUIPMENT REPAIR .00 1,800.00 .0

30-520-5423 TELEPHONE AND CELL SERVICES .00 100.00 .0

TOTAL CAPTAIN'S COVE EXPENSES 1,449.31 12,600.00 11.5

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 1,449.31 12,600.00 11.5

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 5,102,424.93 6,203,766.00 82.3

67



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

CONNECTION FEES

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

INVESTMENT INCOME

40-370-4712 INTEREST CONNECTION FEES CAPX 20,992.03 21,780.00 96.4

TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME 20,992.03 21,780.00 96.4

CONNECTION FEES CAPX

40-380-4820 CONNECTION FEES CAPX 34,616.00 320,420.00 10.8

TOTAL CONNECTION FEES CAPX 34,616.00 320,420.00 10.8

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 54,158.72 329,600.00 16.4

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 5,158,032.96 6,545,966.00 78.8

68



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

RECYCLED WATER

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

RECYCLED WATER CHARGES

60-320-4210 RECYCLED WATER 61,533.38 143,400.00 42.9

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER CHARGES 61,533.38 143,400.00 42.9

INVESTMENT INCOME

60-370-4710 INTEREST RW CAP RESV 10% X3983 .00 1,580.00 .0

60-370-4715 INTEREST ON RW CD X5679 1,517.55 3,050.00 49.8

TOTAL INVESTMENT INCOME 1,517.55 4,630.00 32.8

OTHER NONOPERATING

60-380-4830 MMWD BUY-IN & BOND SHARE CAPX 26,889.69 613,657.00 4.4

60-380-4840 RW CAP REPAIR & REPLACE 10% .00 15,940.00 .0

TOTAL OTHER NONOPERATING 26,889.69 629,597.00 4.3

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 89,940.62 777,627.00 11.6

69



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

OPERATING EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

RECYCLED WATER

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

RECYCLED WATER EXPENSES

60-620-5000 REGULAR STAFF SALARIES 3,445.17 12,900.00 26.7

60-620-5010 OVERTIME 607.94 .00 .0

60-620-5211 GENERAL OPERATING SUPPLIES .00 300.00 .0

60-620-5284 LABORATORY SUPPLIES .00 2,200.00 .0

60-620-5315 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE .00 2,100.00 .0

60-620-5317 EQUIPMENT REPAIR .00 4,900.00 .0

60-620-5319 CAPITAL REPAIR / REPLACEMENT 23,834.00 .00 .0

60-620-5341 ENVIRONMENTAL 6,408.15 25,600.00 25.0

60-620-5345 SCADA ENGINEERING SUPPORT 31,018.44 23,800.00 130.3

60-620-5361 CONSULTING IT SERVICES 7,648.90 7,600.00 100.6

60-620-5362 INCIDENTAL SOFTWARE .00 7,800.00 .0

60-620-5423 TELEPHONE AND CELL SERVICES 1,123.48 400.00 280.9

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER EXPENSES 74,086.08 87,600.00 84.6

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 74,086.08 87,600.00 84.6

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 5,173,887.50 7,235,993.00 71.5

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 5,173,887.50 7,235,993.00 71.5

70



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

ADMINISTRATION

10-400-7504 ASSET CMMS ONBOARDING 20,750.00 840,000.00 2.5

TOTAL ADMINISTRATION 20,750.00 840,000.00 2.5

ENGINEERING

10-420-7101 INTEGRATED WASTEWATER MP 4,123.60 350,000.00 1.2

10-420-7104 SEA LEVEL RISE MITIGATION PROG 25,914.00 60,000.00 43.2

10-420-7105 TRUNK SEWER CAPACITY ANALYSIS 26,188.89 450,000.00 5.8

10-420-7106 HYDRAULIC MODELING .00 77,250.00 .0

10-420-7107 LAB BOARD EDU BUILDING DESIGN 428,404.36 1,791,000.00 23.9

10-420-7108 TP UPG PHASE 2 DESIGN PRI CLAR .00 400,000.00 .0

10-420-7110 BIOSOLIDS SYSTEM PROGRAM 148,758.23 65,952.00 225.6

10-420-7112 EMERGENCY BYPASS PUMPING ANALY 17,059.62 36,050.00 47.3

10-420-7115 STANDARD SPECS & DRAWINGS UPDA 237.50 10,000.00 2.4

10-420-7116 CORPORATION YARD DESIGN .00 500,000.00 .0

10-420-7501 AERATION SYS RELIABILITY STUDY 41,356.12 75,000.00 55.1

10-420-7901 ON-CALL ENGINEERING 28,241.12 206,000.00 13.7

10-420-7903 ON-CALL INSPECTION CAPPROJ 20,685.00 61,800.00 33.5

10-420-7904 MISC UPPCA PROJECTS .00 546.00 .0

10-420-8101 ANNUAL SEWER REHAB 446,537.67 3,136,823.00 14.2

10-420-8102 ON-CALL CONSTRUCTION .00 257,500.00 .0

10-420-9101 ANNUAL SEWER I&I REDUCTION .00 1,000,000.00 .0

TOTAL ENGINEERING 1,187,506.11 8,477,921.00 14.0

COLLECTION SYSTEM

10-460-7703 COLLECTION SYSTEM VEHICLES .00 673,743.00 .0

10-460-7704 EQUIPMENT .00 10,300.00 .0

10-460-8102 MANHOLE FRAME AND COVER ADJUST .00 50,000.00 .0

10-460-8104 TERRA LINDA HWY101 SEWER LININ .00 500,000.00 .0

TOTAL COLLECTION SYSTEM .00 1,234,043.00 .0

PUMP STATIONS

10-500-8301 SCADA PUMP STATIONS 1,785.60 530,000.00 .3

10-500-8303 SMITH RANCH PS ELECTRICAL UPGR .00 1,195,000.00 .0

10-500-8304 STANDBY GENERATORS MINOR PS 44,368.73 372,400.00 11.9

10-500-8305 PUMP STATION SITE LIGHTING SAF 253.75 206,877.00 .1

10-500-8307 ELECTRICAL SYSTEM VFD 2,975.00 500,000.00 .6

10-500-8308 VENETIA HARBOR PUMP STATION 648.00 .00 .0

10-500-8310 RAFAEL  MEADOWS PUMP STATION 8,397.50 150,000.00 5.6

10-500-8315 AUTOMATIC TRANSFER SWITCHES PS 8,266.63 124,297.00 6.7

10-500-8316 HAWTHORNE WATERPROOFING DRYWAL .00 60,000.00 .0

10-500-8318 CENTER PIVOT REPLACEMENTS .00 500,000.00 .0

TOTAL PUMP STATIONS 66,695.21 3,638,574.00 1.8

71



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

GENERAL

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

LABORATORY

10-560-7501 LAB SOFTWARE LIMS FOR TNI 4,350.00 50,400.00 8.6

10-560-7701 LAB EQUIPMENT 6,056.68 10,000.00 60.6

TOTAL LABORATORY 10,406.68 60,400.00 17.2

RECLAMATION

10-580-7101 SOLAR POWER PRCHSE AGREMNT IMP 32,507.00 200,000.00 16.3

10-580-7902 CREEK & WATERSHED  PROGRAMS 7,500.00 .00 .0

10-580-8803 SLUDGE LAGOON LINER 52,417.25 77,250.00 67.9

10-580-8804 DIVERSION BOX VALVE & GATE .00 60,000.00 .0

10-580-8805 LEVEE ROAD RESTORATION .00 150,000.00 .0

10-580-8806 CATTAIL DREDGING IN PONDS .00 100,000.00 .0

10-580-9801 RECLAMATION PUMP STATION IMPRO .00 180,640.00 .0

TOTAL RECLAMATION 92,424.25 767,890.00 12.0

PLANT

10-600-7501 SCADA PLANT 38,440.93 50,000.00 76.9

10-600-8501 DIGESTER ROOM MCC#2 UPGRADE 403,872.50 1,300,000.00 31.1

10-600-8504 DIGESTER IMPROVEMENT 23,536.80 .00 .0

10-600-8505 ANNUAL SITE IMPROVEMENTS .00 60,000.00 .0

10-600-8506 SECONDARY PLANT UPGRADE 270,942.98 20,000.00 1354.7

10-600-8507 PRIMARY CLARIFIER SLUDGE PUMP 9,360.00 150,000.00 6.2

10-600-8508 GRIT CHAMBERS COATING & AUGER 8,957.38 .00 .0

10-600-8509 ANNUAL SITE IMPROVEMENTS PLANT .00 150,000.00 .0

10-600-8515 FUELING STATION - DIESEL & GAS 52,885.12 .00 .0

10-600-8516 STANDBY GENERATOR UPGRADE TP 44,686.22 1,000,000.00 4.5

10-600-8517 ANOXIC BASIN IMPROVEMENTS .00 60,000.00 .0

10-600-8518 CHLORINE CONTACT BASIN IMPROVM .00 50,000.00 .0

10-600-8519 BATTERY ENERGY STORAGE SYSTEM 5,885.00 26,000.00 22.6

10-600-8520 PRIMARY EFFLUENT PUMP OPTIMIZA 578,832.78 1,175,000.00 49.3

10-600-8521 SECONDARY EFFLUENT LINE MOD 55,810.03 721,000.00 7.7

10-600-8798 EXISTING 2ND CLARIFIER REMOVAL .00 55,000.00 .0

TOTAL PLANT 1,493,209.74 4,817,000.00 31.0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 2,870,991.99 19,835,828.00 14.5

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (         2,870,991.99) (       19,835,828.00) (  14.5)

72



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

MARIN LAGOON

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

MARIN LAGOON EXPENSES

20-540-8319 MARIN LAGOON PUMP STATION 2,142.00 60,000.00 3.6

TOTAL MARIN LAGOON EXPENSES 2,142.00 60,000.00 3.6

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 2,142.00 60,000.00 3.6

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (         2,873,133.99) (       19,895,828.00) (  14.4)

73



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

CAPTAIN'S COVE

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

CAPTAIN'S COVE EXPENSES

30-520-8301 CAPTAIN COVE PUMP STATION UPGR .00 18,000.00 .0

TOTAL CAPTAIN'S COVE EXPENSES .00 18,000.00 .0

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES .00 18,000.00 .0

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (         2,873,133.99) (       19,913,828.00) (  14.4)

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (         2,873,133.99) (       19,913,828.00) (  14.4)

74



LAS GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 6 MONTHS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2024

RECYCLED WATER

YTD ACTUAL BUDGET PCNT

RECYCLED WATER EXPENSES

60-620-8522 RECYCLED WATER FACILITY 29,593.53 2,000.00 1479.7

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER EXPENSES 29,593.53 2,000.00 1479.7

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 29,593.53 2,000.00 1479.7

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (         2,902,727.52) (       19,915,828.00) (  14.6)

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES (         2,902,727.52) (       19,915,828.00) (  14.6)

75



76



77



78



79



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\02062025\Amending Ord Title 1 Chp 3 Purchasing\ASR Amend Title 1 Chapter 3 Purchasing.docx Page 1 of 2 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: February 6, 2025 

Re: Revision of Ordinance Code Title 1, Chapter 3 to Align With Existing Purchasing 
Policy on Procurement of Supplies and Equipment 

Item Type:   Consent    Action        Information      X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to consider revisions to Title 1, Chapter 3 of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Code 

amending the policies and procedures governing purchases of supplies, equipment and 

contractual services to align with current Board Policy F-90. 

 
BACKGROUND   
Title 1, Chapter 3 of the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District Code provides policies and 
procedures governing purchases of supplies, equipment and contractual services by the District. It 
was last updated in 2016. Since that time, the Board has adopted a comprehensive list of policies 
codified into a Policies and Procedures Manual, which includes Board Purchasing Policy F-90. 
 
The following proposed changes would align Title 1, Chapter 3 with current practices and 
acknowledge conformance with the current policies in the Policies and Procedures Manual. 
 

• Section 201 and 202 would be amended to reference the District’s current purchasing 
policy rather than list specific dollar amounts. 

• Section 203 would be amended to reference contract execution and retention of 
consultants in the current purchasing policy. 

• Section 204 emergency purchase authority revised. 

• Section 205 and 206 left unchanged. 

• Section 207 updates made in accordance with § 3400 of the Cal. Public Contract Code and 
added that General Manager can approve sole source purchases within their  authority. 

 
PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
Ordinance 168 – Amending Title 1, Chapter 3 adding Section 207 “Necessary Unique or Sole 
Source Purchases” adopted July 14, 2016. 
 
Board revised and adopted Financial Policy F-90, Purchasing Including Retaining Consultants, 
on September 5, 2024.  
 
 
  

Item Number________3.5______ 

GM Review   ____CP__________ 

80

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\02062025\Amending Ord Title 1 Chp 3 Purchasing\ASR Amend Title 1 Chapter 3 Purchasing.docx Page 2 of 2 

 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None  

 
Attachment: 
 

A. Redline version of changes to Title 1, Chapter 3, Policies, Procedures and Bidding 
Regulations Governing Purchase of Supplies and Equipment by Las Gallinas Valley 
Sanitary District. 

81



Attachment A 

 

CHAPTER 3 

POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND BIDDING REGULATIONS  

GOVERNING PURCHASE OF SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT BY LAS  

GALLINAS VALLEY SANITARY DISTRICT 

 

PURPOSE. The purpose of these regulations is to adopt policies and procedures governing purchases 

of supplies, equipment and contractual services by the Las Gallinas Valley Sanitary District in 

accordance with Article 7, of Chapter 5, of Part I, of Division 2, of Title 5 of the Government Code. 

These regulations are not intended to conflict with applicable provisions of state law and shall be 

interpreted as supplementary thereto.  

ARTICLE I. DEFINITIONS  

Section 101. Except as otherwise specified herein, all definitions from Title 1, 

Chapter 1, Article II, shall apply herein. 

ARTICLE II. PURCHASES  

Section 201. Purchases By District. The Board hereby authorizes the General Manager to 

purchase of supplies and equipment for the District or any department, office or other organizational 

unit thereof in amounts, or estimated amounts, of $15,000.00 or less. Such purchases shall be made in 

conformity with the applicable provisions of the current purchasing policies in Policy F-90 of the 

District’s codified Policies and Procedures Manual., rules and regulations. The General Manager is 

responsible for making all such purchases at the most favorable price for the District, consistent with 

efficient operation. The General Manager shall secure competitive bids for all purchases that exceed 

$15,000.00. The District need not use competitive bidding for any contract exempted under state law  

Section 202. Purchases By the Governing Body of District.  The General Manager shall 

submit to the Board requests for purchase of equipment and/or supplies in amounts that exceed the 

purchasing authority limits set by Ppolicy F-90$15,000.00. If the amount of expenditures is 

estimated to exceed $15,000.00the General Manager purchasing authority, bids shall be solicited by 

public notice, followed by award by the governing body of the District, except where it is exempted 

by state law or allowed by the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act (UPCCAA).  The 

method and extent of public notice shall be prescribed by the District Counsel. All bids shall be 

submitted sealed to the District Secretary. The Board may reject any or all bids for any or all supplies 

and equipment.  A tabulation of all bids received, whether accepted or rejected, shall be open for 

82



 

 

Title 1 Chapter 3  Page 2 of 32 

public inspection for a period of not less than thirty (30) days after the bid opening. In all cases, the 

award shall be made to the lowest responsible bidder. In determining the lowest bidder, the 

governing body of District shall take into consideration the quality offered and its conformity with 

the specifications, the delivery and discount terms and conditions of the bid and other information 

and data required to prove his their responsibility. However, price and quality being equal, 

preference may be given to responsible local bidders.  

Section 203. Contractual Services.  Requests for contractual services by the Secretary 

General Manager or any department, office or other organizational unit of District shall be submitted 

to the Board who may negotiate contracts or delegate negotiations for such services as it determines 

are necessary. Contract execution and retention of consultants is guided by the procedures established 

in Policy F-90 the purchasing policies of the District. 

Section 204.  Emergency Purchases.  Emergency purchases may be made 

authorized by the Secretary General Manager, or histheir designee, when the supplies or equipment so 

purchased are necessary for the preservation of life or property. Such emergency purchases shall be 

submitted to the Board for ratification at its next regular meeting.  

Section 205. Gratuities.  The acceptance of any gratuity in the form of cash, 

merchandise, or any other thing of value by an official or any employee of the District from a 

vendor or contractor, or prospective vendor or contractor, shall be a cause for disciplinary action.  

Section 206. Unlawful Purchases.  Except as otherwise provided by law and  

subject to prior approval by the Board, no purchase or supplies, equipment or contractual services 

shall be made in excess of the amount of the appropriations allowed by the budget. 

Section 207. Necessary Unique or Sole Source Purchases. Regardless of the 

requirements of Sections 201 and 202, above, in the event that it is necessary to purchase equipment 

or supplies that is/are unique or can only be purchased from a sole source, manufacturer or supplier, 

regardless if said equipment and/or supplies is/are new, used or custom-made, in accordance with  

§ 3400 of the Cal. Public Contract Code, the General Manager or the District Board shall make upon 

making findings that said Sole Source Purchase is necessary for any of the following purposes:  

a. a. In order that a field test or experiment may be made to determine the products 

suitability for future use; 

83



 

 

Title 1 Chapter 3  Page 3 of 32 

b. In order to match other products in use on a particular public improvement either 

completed or in the course of completion; 

c. In order to obtain a necessary item that is only available from one source;  

d. In order to respond to an emergency: 

1) Declared by the Board and approved by a four-fifths vote of the Board; or 

2) Declared by the state, a state agency, or political subdivision of the state and 

only if the reasons for the finding of the emergency are set forth in the minutes 

of a meeting of the Board approving the resolution; 

1) Said equipment or supplies are unique and currently are not manufactured or 

supplied by another source, manufacturer or supplier; or  

2) b. Said equipment or supplies can only be purchased from a sole source, 

manufacturer or supplier because of its unique price or quality; and  

b.e. c. And tThe proposed equipment or supplies conforms with the requirements and/or 

specifications of the District;  

The General Manager may approve sole source purchases within his purchasing authority and the 

District Board may approve the purchase of said equipment or supplies without compliance with the 

competitive bidding or notice procedures thereof pursuant to Section 202, above, or State law where 

the purchase would be over $15,000.00.  

 

84



 

 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\02062025\0-30 Emergencies\ASR Revise O-30 Policy.docx Page 1 of 1 

Agenda Summary Report                                            
         

 

To: Board of Directors 

From: Dale McDonald, Administrative Services Manager 
 (415) 526-1519   dmcdonald@lgvsd.org 
Meeting Date: February 6, 2025 

Re: Emergency Declarations by Outside Government Bodies and Purchasing 
Exceptions for Emergencies 

Item Type:   Consent    Action        Information      X Other             . 

Standard Contract:    Yes     No  (See attached) Not Applicable      X       . 
 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION 
Board to consider revising Board Policy O-30 Emergencies to include a statement on emergency 

declarations by outside government bodies and purchasing exemptions for emergencies. 
 

BACKGROUND   
Board Policy O-30, Emergencies, covers procedures in the event of emergency situations, 
responsibilities of Board and District staff, and communication of public information. Staff propose 
adding two sections to the policy. 
 
Section O-30-25, Emergency Declarations by Outside Government Bodies, is intended to 
acknowledge instances when other governmental agencies declare an emergency or disaster that 
encompasses or impacts the service area of the District, and for which the District may be eligible 
for expenditure reimbursement. 
 
Should such an emergency or disaster be declared, Section 0-30-35, Purchasing Exceptions for 
Emergencies, would allow exceptions to purchasing policy F-90 to meet immediate and urgent 
operational demands and for the protection of public health and property during the declared 
emergency. To be eligible for reimbursement of disaster related expenses all District purchasing 
policies must be followed. The District runs the risk of not being eligible for reimbursement of 
expenditures incurred if purchasing did not follow the standard purchasing policies of the District. 
Having a purchasing exception for emergencies makes reimbursement more likely. Documentation 
of the exception and its rationale will be maintained as part of the emergency response record. 
 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTION 
Resolution 2023-2299 –Board Policy O-30 Emergencies last adopted February 16, 2023.  
 

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 
N/A 
 

FISCAL IMPACT 
None 
 

Attachment A: Draft redline of revised Board Policy O-30 Emergencies 

Item Number______3.6________ 

GM Review   _______CP_______ 

85

mailto:dmcdonald@lgvsd.org


Resolution No. 2023-2299 Date Approved: February 16, 2023 

President of the Board Last Reviewed: February 2, 2023 

O-30 EMERGENCIES

Purpose 

This policy covers procedures in the event of emergency situations, responsibilities of Board 

and District staff, and public information.  

O-30-10  Informing General Manager. Responding to emergency situations is a critical

district responsibility. The General Manager shall be immediately informed of the existence of

any operation, activity, or occurrence which can affect the public health and safety, or which

can significantly impair the District’s operations.

O-30-20  Emergency Determination. The General Manager, or his/her their designee, shall

make the decision as to whether an emergency exists. The President, in the General

Manager’s or designee’s absence, will make this determination.

O-30-25  Emergency Declarations by Outside Government Bodies. Should an

emergency or disaster declaration be made at the local, State or Federal level, the District 

will take proper action to maximize potential reimbursement should disaster funds become 

available from FEMA, CalOES, or other local sources.  

O-30-30  All Reasonable Actions. The General Manager is empowered to take all

reasonable actions necessary to address the emergency. He/sheThey may make

commitments of expenditures or District funds as necessary beyond what is outlined in Board

Budget Policy F-40. In times of emergency, the General Manager, or his/hertheir designee,

shall make all of the proper and necessary notifications for the District at the appropriate

local, State and Federal level.

O-30-35  Purchasing Exceptions for Emergencies. In the event of a declared local, State,

or Federal disaster or emergency, the District shall follow its standard purchasing policies, 

but the General Manager or their designee is authorized to allow exceptions to the standard 

purchasing policies of the District, including Purchasing Policy F-90, when immediate action 

is required to meet urgent operational demands and/or to protect public health and property. 

Exceptions could include but are not limited to; allowing for non-competitive procurements 

with proper justification, raising the purchasing authority of department managers, and 

authorizing spending in excess of $60,000. Proper accounting practices are to be followed 

during declared emergencies, ensuring expenditures are documented. 

O-30-40  Informing President and Board Members. when When the emergency situation

is under reasonable control, the General Manager, at the earliest possible time, will inform

the President and then the other Board Members of the emergency situation and the actions

taken to address it.

86



 

   

Resolution No. 2023-2299 Date Approved: February 16, 2023 

President of the Board 
 

Last Reviewed: February 2, 2023 

 

O-30-50  Spokesperson. The General Manager will be in the first position for 

communications responding to inquiries about an emergency in responding to inquiries, 

press interviews, and other forms of customers’ contact or outreach. The President of the 

Board of Directors will be in the second position for spokesperson for the District. In every 

case regarding an emergency the General Manager shall make immediate contact with the 

Board President to assure that any and all communications are factual and up-to-date. All 

Board members shall be notified as soon thereafter as possible by District staff.  

 

 

87



 

 
 

 

2/6/2025 
 

BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 
CLARK 

NBWA Board Committee, CASA Workforce Committee, 
Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee,  Human 
Resources Ad Hoc Committee, Energy Ad Hoc Committee, 
Other Reports 
 

 
LAVROV 

Operations Control Centers Ad Hoc Committee, Fleet 
Management Ad Hoc Committee, McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc 
Committee, San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, 
GM Evaluation Ad Hoc Committee, Other Reports 

 
 
MURRAY 

Marin LAFCo, Flood Zone 6,  Biosolids Ad Hoc Committee, 
CASA Energy Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, 
San Francisco Bay Trail Ad Hoc Committee, Energy Ad Hoc 
Committee, Other Reports  
 
 

ROBARDS 
Gallinas Watershed Council/Miller Creek, NBWRA, 
Engineering Ad Hoc Committee,  McInnis Marsh Ad Hoc 
Committee, Development Ad Hoc Committee, Human 
Resources Ad Hoc Committee, GM Evaluation Ad Hoc 
Committee, Other Reports  

 
YEZMAN 

Flood Zone 7, CSRMA,  Engineering Ad Hoc Committee, 
Marin Special Districts Association, Biosolids Ad Hoc 
Committee, Fleet Management Ad Hoc Committee, Other 
Reports 

AGENDA ITEM 4 

88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



                                                                                  AGENDA: ITEM 5A 
                                                                                  DATE: February 6, 2025            

REVISED 09062023 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER CONFERENCE/ 

 MEETING/WEBINAR ATTENDANCE REQUEST 
 

 

Date:___________Name:__________________________________________________ 

 

I would like to attend the __________________________________________Meeting 

of _____________________________________________________________________ 

To be held on the ______ day of ___________ from ________ a.m. / p.m. to 

_______day of ___________ from  _________ a.m. / p.m. 

Location of meeting:____________________________________________________ 

Actual meeting date(s):____________________________________________________ 

Meeting Type: (In person/Webinar/Conference)_______________________________ 

Purpose of Meeting:______________________________________________________  

Meeting relevance to District:__________________________________________  

 

Board Members to register for Webinars and Meetings   

                       YES  NO 

Request assistance from Board Secretary to register for Conference only:         

 

Board Directors to make their own Hotel Reservations and book their own 

transportation including airfare, taxi and/or shuttles. 

   

Frequency of Meeting: ____________________________________________________ 

 

Estimated Costs of Travel (if applicable):____________________________________ 

 

Date submitted to Board Secretary:________________________________________ 

 

Board approval obtained on Date:_________________________________________ 

 

Please submit this form to the Board Secretary no later than 1 week  prior to the 

Board Meeting.  

 

  

114



 

 
 

X:\BOARD\Agenda\Agenda 2025\Agenda Packet\02062025\5B Board Agenda Item Requests.docx 

2/6/2025 
 

BOARD AGENDA ITEM REQUESTS 
 

Agenda Item 5B 

□ Separate Item to be distributed at Board Meeting 

□ Separate Item to be distributed prior to Board Meeting 

 Verbal Report 

□ Presentation 

 

115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152


	3.3 2nd QTR Treasurer's Report Dec 2024.pdf
	2nd Qtr Report and attachments.pdf
	A_2nd QTR Treasurers Report Dec 2024
	B_CD 715679
	C_CD 716073
	D_LAIF Qtrly Interest 12-31-24
	E_CLASS
	E_10 Oct 20241031_STMT_CA-01-0138_399
	E_11 Nov 20241130_STMT_CA-01-0138_399
	E_12 Dec 20241231_STMT_CA-01-0138_399

	F_CAMP
	F_10 Statement October 31 2024
	F_11 Statement November 30 2024
	F_12 Statement December 31 2024


	G_ExpenditureSummaries.pdf
	G1_O&M
	G2_CapitalExpenditures





